
 

 

Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454  

e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 

 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 26 March 2013 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel: 
 
Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), S M Booth, C J T H Brewis, 
A Casson, R Clark, M Howard, R Perkins, R M Rudkin, 
M D Seymour, S-A Slade, E J Sneath, D J Wilkinson (Vice-
Chairman), S Wilkinson, J L King and A C Tennant 
 
Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may 
be appointed only from members who are not on the Cabinet.  
Substitutions apply for individual meetings only.  
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
 
Member Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   18 March 2013 
 



A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 
29 January 2013 (copy enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
1 - 6) 

3.  Declarations of Interest. - (Members are no longer required to declare 
personal of prejudicial interests but are to declare any new Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests that are not currently included in their Register of 
Interests. 
 
Members are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not to 
participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
members may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, in 
relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)    
 

 

4.  Questions asked under Council Procedure Rule 10.3.  
 

 

5.  Tracking of Recommendations - To consider responses of the Cabinet 
to reports of the Panel. 
 

 

a)   Response of the Cabinet to the Interim Report of the re-convened 
Effectiveness of CCTV in South Holland Task Group - (report 
enclosed) 
 

(Pages 
7 - 10) 

6.  Items referred from the Policy Development Panel.  
 

 

7.  Key Decision Plan - To note the current Key Decision Plan (Pages 
11 - 16) 

8.  Carbon Management Plan Task Group update - The Portfolio Holder for 
Waste Management, Green Spaces and Operational Planning and the 
Community Development Manager will be in attendance to provide an 
update on the progress in actioning the recommendations of the Carbon 
Management Plan Task Group.  (A copy of a form listing the Cabinet’s 
response to the Task Group’s recommendations is enclosed, together 
with details of updates received). 
 
 

(Pages 
17 - 22) 

9.  Provision of Members' IT - The Director of IT (Compass Point Business 
Services), Gary Stephens, will be in attendance to provide an update on 
Members’ IT provision.   
 
 

 

10.  Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - To set out the Work 
Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel (report of the 
Assistant Director Democratic Services enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
23 - 30) 

11.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent -  
 

 



NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 46 - 
 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in Meeting 
Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 29 January 2013 at 
6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

D J Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

C J T H Brewis 
A Casson 
R Clark 
M Howard 
 

R Perkins 
M D Seymour 
S-A Slade 
E J Sneath 
 

S Wilkinson 
A C Tennant 
 

In Attendance:  The Director of Information Technology and the Principal Member 
Services Officer. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors S M Booth, 
J L King and R M Rudkin  
 
 

53 MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the special joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and the 
Policy Development Panel held on 4 December 2012 and the meeting of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel held on 11 December 2012 were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 
  
With regard to the item on Gypsy and Traveller Sites, that was considered at the 
meeting held on 11 December 2012, the Chairman again requested that the Panel be 
updated on the following issues, as soon as possible:  
 

• Members of the Panel were anxious that issues at the Holbeach site were 
concluded before any further work progressed. 

• Regarding the transfer of title, the Audit Commission had advised that it would be 
prudent to secure a letter from the Secretary of State sanctioning the transfer with 
differential vaues, in order to mitigate against any possible future legal challenge 
– what was the current position regarding this? 

• What would the final figure for the cost of the Holbeach site be? 
 

54 KEY DECISION PLAN  

 
Consideration was given to the current Key Decision Plan, which had been issued on 
18 January 2013. 
 
DECISION: 

 
That the current Key Decision Plan be noted. 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.

Page 1



- 47 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

29 January 2013 

 

 

 

55 PROVISION OF MEMBERS' IT  

 
At the last meeting of the Panel, held on 11 December 2012, members had raised 
concerns regarding their IT provision and the following issues had been raised: 
 

• Was delivery of IT to members as good as it should be? 

• Was the current provision of members’ IT value for money? 

• Members were unhappy with the way in which problems and issues with their 
laptops were resolved and how long it sometimes took to resolve (or not, as was 
sometimes the case) 

• Members were unhappy with the required frequency of password changes 
 
In response to the Panel’s request, the Director of IT was in attendance at the 
meeting to answer members concerns.  During the discussion, the following issues 
were raised: 
 

• What was the Director’s opinion of how things were currently working with regard 
to member IT provision? 
o The current position was only adequate.  It was not easy for IT to support 

members.  There were problems in that there was a mixed estate of IT 
equipment. There was currently a drive to improve delivery.  

 

• Updates could not currently be made by members, the IT department had to 
undertake these updates. 
o New solutions to overcome this were currently being investigated. 

 

• Passwords were a problem for some members.  Why did passwords have to be 
changed every 90 days?  Some members had difficulty changing their passwords. 
There were too many different passwords required to access the system. 
o With regard to the timing of password resets, the frequency was laid down in 

government guidelines and was dictated from a security perspective, with 90 
days being the maximum time limit permitted under current regulations.  

o The difficulties with passwords were largely due to an accumulation of different 
offerings over the years which had tried to find solutions.  The current system 
was secure but had been complicated as a result of issues being dealt with on 
a piecemeal basis, and this was the reason that members were having 
difficulties.  The Director acknowledged that multiple passwords were far from 
ideal and advised that solutions were being looked at, including the trial of a 
single sign on product.                                                   

 

• Would the new single sign on allow members to change passwords themselves? 
o Yes, members would no longer have to visit the offices to have this done.  

 

• How long would the trial take and when could members hope to see changes to 
the way they logged in? 
o The trial would be complete within six weeks, the system would then be tested 

and rolled out. Members would be asked to bring their laptops into the IT 
department to have the old encryption system removed, and a new one with 

Page 2



- 48 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

29 January 2013 

 

 

 

single sign on added.  The time required to do this could be up to three days, 
although this was dependent on how many additional applications members 
had on their laptops.   

 

• It was suggested that the trial should be undertaken by a group of members, and 
with members of varying IT ability.  Comment was also made as to whether the IT 
department was aware of how Councillors worked and the different requirements 
they had of their equipment? 
o Following a period under trial, the solution appeared to work however, the 

Director of IT was looking to widen the trial and would be happy for a small 
group of members to be involved.  Using a cross section of people who used 
IT in different ways would provide a more informed result.  

o Councillor C J T H Brewis, S Slade and R Perkins volunteered to be involved 
in the trial.    

 

• New laptops had been provided to members during the last administration and at 
the start of the current one in 2012.  Was this likely to happen again? 
o A robust system for member IT provision was required, over a longer period of 

time. 
 

• Why could South Holland emails not be diverted to private email accounts? 
o Emails could not be diverted to private email accounts as this created security 

issues.  A secure and easy was of accessing South Holland emails was 
required, which did not necessitate diversion to another email account. 

 
The Director of IT stated that with regard to future IT provision, agreement would be 
required on a build that all Councillors and the Leader were happy with.  All 
programmes not part of the Council build would have to be removed from members’ 
laptops. 
 
Members requested that the Director of IT attend the next meeting of the Panel to 
provide an  update on progress. 
 
DECISION: 

 

That the information provided by the Director of IT be noted and that he be requested 
to attend the next meeting of the Panel to provide an update; and 
 
That Councillors C J T H Brewis, S Slade and R Perkins trial the new single login 
product which, if successful, would in due course be rolled out to all members. 
 
(The Director of IT and Councillor S Slade left the meeting following discussion of the 
above item). 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



- 49 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

29 January 2013 

 

 

 

56 INTERIM REPORT OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF CCTV TASK GROUP  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Chairman of the Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group, which made interim recommendations to the Panel regarding the re-
convened Task Group. 
 
The Cabinet had considered the recommendations of the original Task Group in June 
2010, and since then, the Performance Monitoring Panel had monitored Portfolio 
Holder progress on these recommendations. On 6 November 2012, the Panel had 
agreed to re-convene the Task Group, with the following Terms of Reference: 
 
‘To examine the effectiveness of the Council’s CCTV service and prospects for future 
provision’.   
 
The Task Group had not yet concluded its work but given recent developments 
regarding a possible countywide CCTV system, it had produced an interim report for 
the Panel’s consideration. The Chairman of the Task Group advised that as there 
were currently a number of issues around the future of CCTV provision, the Task 
Group thought it necessary to make recommendations to Cabinet to reassure local 
residents that CCTV provision would continue. 
 
The Chairman of the Task Group reported that since the agenda had been sent out, 
additional information regarding funding for CCTV had been identified, and therefore 
proposed that the following information be included within the Interim Report: 
 
‘SHDC contribution to the current CCTV provision is contained within the proposed 
base budget at current levels for 2013/14, pending the decisions of parishes as to 
whether they wish to continue.  Money was set aside from reserves from savings 
within community development in the last financial year (2011/12) which could be 
drawn down to support interim arrangements if agreed.’ 
 
DECISIONS: 

 
a) That the Interim Report of the Effectiveness of CCTV in South Holland Task 

Group be received; 
 
b) That the recommendations of the Task Group, as detailed below, be submitted to 

Cabinet for approval: 
 

• That Officers secure a further yearly contract with Grimston Technical 
Services; 

• That an annual or bi-annual meeting is arranged with all partners involved 
to discuss requirements; and 

• That CCTV is re-evaluated in 3 to 12 months time when new broadband 
technology is available;  and 

 
c) That prior to its submission to Cabinet, section 8.1 of the Task Group’s Interim 

Report be amended, substituting the second sentence – ‘this will be initially 

Page 4



- 50 - 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 

29 January 2013 

 

 

 

funded through the Community Safety Partnership’ – with the following 
information: 

 

• SHDC contribution to the current CCTV provision is contained within the 
proposed base budget at current levels for 2013/14, pending the decisions 
of parishes as to whether they wish to continue.  Money was set aside from 
reserves from savings within community development in the last financial 
year (2011/12) which could be drawn down to support interim 
arrangements if agreed. 

 
57 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director (Democratic Services) 
which set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work 
Programme consisted of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for consideration and the second 
setting out the Task Groups that had been identified by the Panel. 
 

DECISION: 

 
That both sections of the Panel’s Work Programme, as set out in the report of the 
Assistant Director (Democratic Services) be noted. 
 
(The meeting ended at 8.12 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - RECOMMENDATION TRACKING 
 
Title of Report::   Effectiveness of CCTV Task Group (Re-convened) Interim Report 
 
Date of Panel:   29th January 2013 
 
Recommendations made to: Cabinet 
 
Date:     19th February 2013 
 
Relevant Portfolio:   Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society/Deputy Leader of the Council 
 
Lead Officer:    Emily Spicer, Environmental Services Co-ordinator 
 

Recommendations  Cabinet Response Officer(s) 
responsible for 
action 

Progress 
report back to 
Panel 

 
It is recommended that: 
 
1. Officers secure a further yearly contract with 
GTS. 

 
2. An annual or biannual meeting is arranged with 
all partners involved to discuss requirements. 

 
3. CCTV is re-evaluated in 3 to 12 months time 

when new broadband technology is available.  
 

 
DECISION: 
 
a) That the following recommendations 

of the Task Group be approved: 
 

• That an annual or biannual 
meeting be arranged with all 
partners involved to discuss 
requirements; and 

 

Riana Rudland  

A
genda Item

 5.a)

P
age 7



• That CCTV be re-evaluated in 3 to 
12 months time when new 
broadband technology was 
available. 

 
b) That the following recommendation of 

the Task Group not be 
approved: 

 

• That Officers secure a further 
yearly contract with Grimston 
Technical Services  

 
c) That Grimston Technical Services be 

advised that South Holland District 
Council wished to retain its services 
until the end of March 2013 after 
which point a further discussion take 
place to discuss future timescales for 
the implementation of a countywide 
CCTV scheme; and 

 
d) That a letter be sent to all parties who 

provided and used CCTV, to 
encourage closer working in the 
provision and administration of CCTV 
in the South Holland area. 

 
 

P
age 8



 

P
age 9



P
age 10

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1

 KEY DECISION PLAN 
 
 

 Issued –  15/03/2013 
 

 

 
Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the 

decision is likely to be made, to:   
Shelley French, Member Services Support Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE  

Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: member.services@sholland.gov.uk. 
 

The Key Decision Plan shows all key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision 
is expected to be made.  Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget 
and the Policy Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies). 
 
The definition of a “key decision” is: 
“A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more Wards of the Council 
and /or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any single financial year 
above the threshold of £67,900 in respect of revenue expenditure and £167,500 in respect of capital expenditure.”  
 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor C J 
Lawton 
clawton@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Council House 
re-roofing 
contract 
 

To award a works contract Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager  
 
Informal Meetings 
and discussions 

To follow Officer (Duncan Hall) 
01/03/2013 
 
The above date is a guide line 
and It is likely that this decision 
will be taken by the end of 
February 2013 or early March 
2013.   

A
genda Item

 7.

P
age 11



 2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor C J 
Lawton 
clawton@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Council House 
Asbestos 
Removal 
Contract 
 

To award a works contract 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager  
 
Informal meetings 
and discussions 

To follow Officer (Duncan Hall) 
01/03/2013 
 
The above date is a guide line 
and It is likely that this decision 
will be taken by the end of 
February 2013 or early March 
2013.   

Councillor C J 
Lawton 
clawton@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Council House 
Building 

To award a works contract for development of 
a site 
 
Broadgate, Whaplode Drove (2 dwellings) 

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord 
and Housing 
Manager 
 
Informal meetings 
and discussions, 
PDP meeting 12 
June 2012 

HRA refinancing 
report, full 
Council 7 March 
2012, 
Minutes and 
report PDP 12 
June 2012,  

Officer (Duncan Hall) 
01/04/2013 
 
The above date is a guide line 
and It is likely that this decision 
will be taken by the end of 
March 2013 or early April 2013.   

Councillor H 
Johnson 
 
hjohnson@sh
olland.gov.uk  
 
LEGE East 
Midlands 
 

To seek approval  Elected members 
 
Via electronic 
communication 

LEGE East 
Midlands 
Summary 

Council** 10/04/2013 

P
age 12



 3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor C J 
Lawton 
clawton@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Sutton Bridge 
Gypsy and 
Traveller Site 
 

To award the works contract (subject to 
matters relating to the Holbeach site having 
been resolved by this time) 

Portfolio Holder for 
Assets and Property, 
Procurement 
Lincolnshire 
 
Portfolio Holder 
briefings – ongoing.   

As detailed in 
report 

Officer (Duncan Hall)  
By the end of April 2013 
 
 

Councillor C J 
Lawton 
clawton@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Council House 
Building 

To award a works contract for development of 
a site 
 
Clarkson Avenue, Cowbit (2 dwellings) 

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord 
and Housing 
Manager 
 
Informal meetings 
and discussions, 
PDP meeting 12 
June 2012 

HRA refinancing 
report, full 
Council 7 March 
2012, 
Minutes and 
report PDP 12 
June 2012,  

Officer (Duncan Hall) 
01/05/2013 
 
The above date is a guide line 
and It is likely that this decision 
will be taken by the end of April 
2013 or early May 2013.   

Councillor H 
Johnson 
 
hjohnson@sh
olland.gov.uk  
 
Proposal 
Assessment 
Process – 
Springfields 
S106 Funding 
 

Approval for S106 application scoring and 
approval process 

Finance, Portfolio 
Holder, Stakeholders 
 
Email consultation 

Project 
Mandate, 
Proposal 
Assessment 
process, Project 
Assessment 
Matrix, Proposal 
Assessment 
Criteria, 
Expression of 
Interest Form 
 

Cabinet* 07/05/2013 

P
age 13



 4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor M 
G Chandler 
 
mchandler@s
holland.gov.uk  
 
Sex 
Establishment
s and Sexual 
Entertainment 
Venues Policy 

The decision will be to determine /adopt and 
implementation of Sex Establishments and 
Sexual Entertainment Venues Policy for South 
Holland District Council 

District Councillors, 
Police, Fire Service, 
Planning, Community 
Safety Team, 
Environmental 
Protection Team, 
Food Safety and 
Licensing Team, 
Licensing Authority, 
Children’s 
Safeguarding Unit, 
LCC, Lincolnshire 
Trading Standards, 
Local Residents, 
Businesses and any 
representations the 
Authority may 
receive. 
 
Letters posted to 
those listed and 
information provided 
on the website, 
responses to 
consultation 

Policy and 
conditions will 
be appended to 
the report once 
the consultation 
process has 
been 
completed. 

Council**  15/05/2013 

P
age 14



 5

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS  

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION 
AND WHO WILL MAKE 

DECISION 

Councillor C J 
Lawton 
clawton@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Council House 
Building 

To award a works contract for development of 
a site 
 
A further scheme for 4 dwellings which a site is 
yet to be determined 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord 
and Housing 
Manager 
 
Informal meetings 
and discussions, 
PDP meeting 12 
June 2012 

HRA refinancing 
report, full 
Council 7 March 
2012, 
Minutes and 
report PDP 12 
June 2012,  

Officer (Duncan Hall) 
03/06/2013 
 
The above date is a guide line 
and It is likely that this decision 
will be taken by the end of May 
2013 or early June 2013.   

Councillor P 
Przyszlak 
pprzyszlal@sh
olland.gov.uk 
 
Quarterly 
Finance 
Report: 
Quarter 4 
 

To approve recommendations Corporate 
Management Team, 
Executive Board.   
 
Meetings 

To follow Cabinet*  11/06/2013 

Councillor C J 
Lawton 
clawton@sholl
and.gov.uk 
 
Council House 
Kitchen and 
Bathroom 
Replacement 
Contract 
 

To award a works contract 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager 
and  Policy 
Development Panel 
 
Informal meetings 
and discussions 

To follow Officer (Duncan Hall) 
15/07/2013 
 
The above date is a guide line 
and It is likely that this decision 
will be taken by the end of 
February 2013 or early March 
2013.   

P
age 15



 6

 
 

*Cabinet Membership 

Councillor G A Porter – Leader of the Council 
Councillor C N Worth – Deputy Leader of the Council (Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society) 
Councillor P S Przyszlak – Deputy Leader (Portfolio Holder for Strategic Finance and Democratic Services) 
Councillor M G Chandler (Portfolio Holder for Regulatory Services) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green Spaces and Operational Planning) 
Councillor H R Johnson (Portfolio Holder for Economic Development, Commercial Assets and Strategic Planning) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder for Housing Landlord) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder for Internal Services, Performance and Business Development) 

  

**Council Membership 

Councillor B Alcock 
Councillor G R Aley 
Councillor D Ashby 
Councillor J E Avery 
Councillor F Biggadike 
Councillor M D Booth 
Councillor S M Booth 
Councillor C J T H Brewis 
Councillor A Casson 
Councillor M G Chandler 
Councillor R Clark 
Councillor P E Coupland 
Councillor R J H Creese 

Councillor G K Dark 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones 
Councillor R Grocock 
Councillor A Harrison 
Councillor M Howard 
Councillor H R Johnson 
Councillor J King 
Councillor C J Lawton 
Councillor A Miller 
Councillor A M Newton  
Councillor R Perkins 
Councillor G A Porter 

Councillor P S Przyszlak 
Councillor A Puttick 
Councillor R M Rudkin 
Councillor M D Seymour 
Councillor S Slade 
Councillor E Sneath 
Councillor G J Taylor 
Councillor A C Tennant 
Councillor D J Wilkinson 
Councillor S Wilkinson 
Councillor A R Woolf 
Councillor C N Worth 

 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Shelley French, Member Services Support Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 

Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: member.services@sholland.gov.uk 
 

 

P
age 16



PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - RECOMMENDATION TRACKING 
 
Title of Report:   Carbon Management Plan Task Group Final Report 
 
Date of Panel:   23 March 2011 
 
Recommendations made to: Cabinet 
 
Date:     29 March 2011 
 
Relevant Portfolio:   The Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green Spaces and Operational Planning 
Relevant Officer:   Carbon Management Officer (Jacqui Dolby) 
 
Lead Officer:    The Community Development Manager 
 

Recommendations (confirmed by Cabinet) Portfolio Holder updates from previous Panel meetings  

That, subject to further consideration being given to the staffing 
implications, the recommendations of the Task Group be 
approved: 

 

1. That a Carbon Reduction policy, together with performance 
indicators for individual buildings, vehicle emissions etc, be 
formally adopted; 
 

(7 December 2011) 
A meeting with the Performance Manager had been scheduled 
to start this process.  Discussions with managers across the 
organisation would be needed to achieve buy-in and set realistic 
targets. 
(10 July 2012) 
With regard to performance, the information provided by the 
Carbon management Officer was currently reported through one 
particular Portfolio area which did not reflect work done in other 
areas.  It was proposed that a line covering carbon management 

A
genda Item

 8.

P
age 17



be included under all Portfolio Holder areas within the 
performance reporting system in order to rectify this. 

2. That the Policy be made a corporate priority with overall 
responsibility identified at Director level; 
 
 

(7 December 2011) 
Cabinet responsibility had been identified so this had been partly 
achieved.  In addition, the Deputy Chief Executive had also 
become involved with this work. 

3. That an authority wide awareness of the need to reduce 
energy consumption and consequently cost be created and 
enforced; 

(7 December 2011) 
An awareness campaign had been included in the work 
programme for early 2012, to end with a ‘Switch Off’ day during 
Climate Week in March 2012.  The Portfolio Holder advised that 
he would like to include energy awareness in the induction 
process, and make it the responsibility of all employees to 
actively save energy wherever possible.   

4. That the data required be identified, to be collected so that 
energy performance for individual buildings (or part of buildings 
where these were sublet) could be properly monitored; 
 

(7 December 2011) 
Energy data had been collected from bills and half-hourly 
metering data where available since 2008/2009.  In addition, 
there were some automatic meters being installed at a few 
sites.  Regular meter readings would be advantageous to 
check billing, which now happened with a few sites and should 
ideally be extended further. 
The Chairman of the Panel asked whether energy consumption 
within specific sections of the building could be monitored and 
that this be fed into the data to see where power was being 
used.  The Portfolio Holder responded that the Carbon 
Management Officer had considered this but to undertake it 
would be difficult.  Issues such as the energy usage of 
organisations renting parts of the building needed to be 
considered, was their energy usage high or low and was the 
amount charged by the Authority correct?  

P
age 18



5. That the thermal efficiency of all of the Council’s buildings and 
housing stock be brought up to the highest modern standards, 
subject to consideration of the cost implications; 
 

(7 December 2011) 
Ongoing work to improve the thermal efficiency of buildings was 
being carried out by the Council’s Property Asset Team.  The 
cost was a large consideration in any work carried out. 
The Portfolio Holder also commented that with regard to solar 
power, recent changes to the feed-in tariff had complicated 
matters and the initiative had been put on hold to undertake a 
re-appraisal.  On-going work was also being done to insulate the 
building.  The Chairman of the Panel asked whether insulation in 
the roof-spacing of the building had been considered, as this 
would be a low-cost way and easy way of improving the 
efficiency of the building. 

6. That the authority engage with companies, at no additional 
cost, to find ways of replacing lighting, for example, and 
equipment to reduce energy costs; 
 
 

(7 December 2011) 
A number of companies had been approached to assess the 
lighting requirements at Priory Road to date, and some 
replacements were planned by the Property Assets Team.  
Again, cost and payback were a big consideration.  Work 
already carried out included areas of the South Holland Centre 
and the Castle Sports Hall.  Also on the agenda was the Castle 
Swimming Pool lighting.  New technologies were constantly 
evolving in many areas, not just lighting, and as potentially 
useful technologies became available, investigations would be 
carried out to assess the suitability for South Holland District 
Council premises. 
 

7. That preparations be made for the delivery of a Carbon 
Reduction policy, to be the responsibility of one Portfolio Holder 
or Champion; 
 

(7 December 2011) 
The Portfolio Holder was currently working up a draft work 
programme to deliver the Carbon Management Plan. 

P
age 19



8. That the East Lindsey Carbon Management Plan be 
reviewed, to see what can be learnt from it; 
 

(7 December 2011) 
There were a number of projects suggested in the East Lindsey 
Carbon Management Plan which could be suitable to carry out 
in South Holland however, each building was unique and would 
need to be assessed on an individual basis to see what could 
be done in terms of carbon reduction. 
 

9. That a joined up approach to carbon management between 
South Holland District Council and Breckland District Council be 
ensured; 
 

(7 December 2011) 
It was planned to arrange a meeting between the two councils to 
discuss carbon management.  Information has been shared with 
Breckland on projects that had been carried out in South 
Holland. 

10.  That the Council’s ‘Climate Change Reserve’ be used to 
fund suitable carbon management projects and other related 
work for example, better roof insulation or inner lobbies to the 
entrance doors at Priory Road; and 
 

(7 December 2011) 
Where the money was and how much there was had to be 
ascertained.  It was possible that the reserve had already been 
spent.  Clever use of current resources would be needed to 
deliver gains in this area. 

11.  That the use of alternative fuels for Council vehicles, in 
particular refuse collection vehicles as a means of improving 
energy efficiency and costs and reducing emissions, be 
considered. 
 

(7 December 2011) 
Joint procurement across Lincolnshire was being looked at for 
the refuse/recycling vehicles – the current contract ran out in 
2014.  Energy efficiency was part of the procurement process. 

Other issues raised at meetings  (7 December 2011) 

• The Portfolio Holder advised the Panel that issues around 
Carbon Management were still in a state of flux, and some 
of Breckland District Council’s resource was being used.  A 
shared arrangement was possibly being looked at however, 
this would not be looked at until at least twelve months time.  
The Portfolio Holder reported that a specific Carbon 

P
age 20



Management Officer had now been appointed and was 
located in the Community Development Team.   In addition, 
he was a Cabinet-based Champion of Carbon 
Management, and this area of responsibility was now 
included within his Portfolio. 

• Following the update on the Task Group’s 
recommendations, the Portfolio Holder commented that it 
would be useful if the Task Group could be retained to act 
as an oversight to the work being undertaken.  The 
Chairman replied that the Task Group itself would not be 
retained, but that regular tracking of recommendations 
updates would provide the same overview.  It was agreed 
that the Portfolio Holder would report back again to the 
Panel in six months time and that in the meantime, the 
Carbon Management Officer provide a list of areas where 
she felt the Panel’s input and help would be useful. 

 
In addition to the updates provided at the meeting, the Portfolio 
Holder spoke to the Panel Chairman after the meeting and 
mentioned the following additional points: 

• There was a need to complete the solar panel project at 
Priory Road, by installing a display panel in the atrium area 
so that the public could see the benefits of this investment. 
(Update from 10 July 2012) – The Authority was in receipt 
of some monies from the Carbon Reduction Fund, and some 
of this would be spent on completing a project to obtain 
readouts from the solar panels.  This information would be 
displayed In the atrium at the Priory Road offices. 

• The heating system at Priory Road needed to be updated to 

P
age 21



give much greater control in individual areas, as the current 
system caused huge waste because of the temperature 
differentials in different areas. 

 
(10 July 2012) 
The Portfolio Holder provided an exceptions report as not a 
great deal had changed since the last update.  Updates 
regarding solar panels and performance are detailed in the 
appropriate sections above. 

 

P
age 22



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Vicky Thomson - Assistant Director, Democratic Services 
 
To:    Performance Monitoring Panel –26 March 2013   
 
(Author:  Christine Morgan – Member Services Officer) 
 
Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme 
 
Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring 

Panel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Background 
 
1.1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by 

the Panel for inclusion on its work programme. 
 
1.2 Issues 
 
1.2.1 Appendix 1 sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed 

items for consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by 
councillors or are being referred to the Panel from Officers or Cabinet.  This 
appendix will be updated as new items are identified. 

 
1.2.2 Appendix 2 sets out the Task Groups that have been identified by the Panel.  

The table shows: 
 

• The name of the Task Group 

• What it wants to achieve  

• Key dates 

• Membership of the Task Group 

• When the Task Group will be reporting back to the Panel 
 
1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the 

report as a standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by 
the Panel and provide the opportunity for Councillors to monitor the progress 
of its work programme. 

 
 
 
 

Recommendation:  
 
That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues 

for discussion. 

Agenda Item 10.

Page 23



2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1  To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To allow Members to feed into the Panel’s Calendar of Work Programme 

items and the Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay 
relevant and up to date. 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
4.1 The Calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will 

provide Members with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for 
various calendar items and proposed Task Groups within the Work 
Programme are included within the appendices. 

 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 There are no direct Carbon Footprint and Environment Issue implications 

associated with this report.  As individual items are progressed through the 
work programme, their Carbon Footprint and Environmental Issue implications 
will be assessed. 

 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 There are no direct Constitution & Legal implications associated with this 

report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their 
Constitution & Legal implications will be assessed. 

 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 There are no direct Contract implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Contract    
implications will be assessed. 

 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 There are no direct Crime and Disorder implications associated with this 

report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their 
Crime and Disorder implications will be assessed. 

 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 There are no direct Equality and Diversity & Human Rights implications 

associated with this report.  As individual items are progressed through the 
work programme, their Equality and Diversity & Human Rights implications will 
be assessed. 

Page 24



 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 There are no direct Financial implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Financial    
implications will be assessed. 

 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 There are no direct Risk Management implications associated with this report.  

As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Risk 
Management implications will be assessed. 

 
5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 There are no direct Staffing implications associated with this report.  As 

individual items are progressed through the work programme, their Staffing    
implications will be assessed. 

  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 There are no direct Stakeholder/Consultation implications associated with this 

report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their    
implications will be assessed. 

  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 When a Task Group is considered for inclusion on the Panel’s Work 

Programme, it is assessed against criteria covering Importance, Impact and 
Value for Money.  The ‘Impact’ and ‘Value for Money’ score indicators 
consider how strongly the issue will affect a ward(s), customer group(s) or 
service area(s).  Only issues scoring highly will be included on the Work 
Programme. 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:- None 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post:    Christine Morgan (Member Services Officer) 
Telephone Number:  01775 764454 
Email:     cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
 
Appendix 1 – Work Programme Calendar 
Appendix 2 – Task Group Work Programme 2012/13 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

APPENDIX 1 

 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 

ITEMS 
 

 
Date of Meeting 

 
Agenda items 

 

26 March 2013 
 

• The IT Director (Compass Point Business Services), Gary 
Stephens, to attend to provide an update to members’ 
questions and concerns regarding their IT provision (last 
attendance at PMP 29 January 2013).   

• Response of the Cabinet to the Interim Report of the 
reformed Effectiveness of CCTV in South Holland Task 
Group (Tracking document) 

• Carbon Management Plan Task Group – update on the 
progress of the Task Group’s recommendations (the 
Portfolio Holder for Waste Management, Green Spaces and 
Operational Planning and the Community Development 
Manager to attend) 

28 May 2013 
 

• CIC Task Group/Red Lion Quarter Task Group – Update to 
the Panel on progress of the Action Plan (which had been 
developed to address both of the Task Groups 
recommendations). 

• Update on progress of the restructure of the CSU (from 
recommendations of reformed CSU Task Group) 

• The Interim Housing Manager to update on the Authority’s 
position regarding the CSU trading both internally and 
externally – first update received 25 September 2012. 

• Biennial Review of Implemented Planning Decisions 
(changed from annual to biennial November 2010). 

• Review of progress of recommendations of Siting and 
Maintenance of Open Spaces and Play Areas within 
Residential Developments Task Group – to take place as 
part of biennial Review of Implemented Planning Decisions 

• Corporate Communications Strategy – Joint 
Communications Team Leader to bring proposals forward to 
Panel as to how this work is to be taken forward (agreed at 
PMP 10 July 2012) 

• Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report (Quarter 4) ANY 
ISSUES TO BE RAISED WITH JOINT PERFORMANCE 
TEAM LEADER PRIOR TO MEETING SO RESPONSES 
CAN BE AVAILABLE 

24 July 2013 
 

• Crime and Disorder  - Update report on community safety 
and how it is being delivered through the various tiers of 
Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly 
formed Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six 
months by the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society) 

Page 26



• Presentation from the Lincolnshire Primary Care Trust to 
update on current position with regard to dentistry in the 
South Holland area last presentation March 2011) – Panel 
to consider if it wishes to receive an update on the current 
position. 

15 October 2013 
 

• Annual Inspection of Planning Files – Update report to Panel 
advising findings following inspection 

• Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report (Quarter 1) – 
Unable to present to PMP prior to Cabinet on this occasion 
due to meeting dates)  ANY ISSUES TO BE RAISED WITH 
JOINT PERFORMANCE TEAM LEADER PRIOR TO 
MEETING SO RESPONSES CAN BE AVAILABLE 

•  

3 December 2013 
 

• Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report (Quarter 2) ANY 
ISSUES TO BE RAISED WITH JOINT PERFORMANCE 
TEAM LEADER PRIOR TO MEETING SO RESPONSES 
CAN BE AVAILABLE 

 

28 January 2014 
 

• Crime and Disorder  - Update report on community safety 
and how it is being delivered through the various tiers of 
Groups and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly 
formed Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six 
months by the Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society) 

8 April 2014 
 

• Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report (Quarter 3) ANY 
ISSUES TO BE RAISED WITH JOINT PERFORMANCE 
TEAM LEADER PRIOR TO MEETING SO RESPONSES 
CAN BE AVAILABLE 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 
 
 

Page 28



APPENDIX 2 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2012/2013 

 

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to 
achieve 

Date added to 
Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

Membership of 
Task Group 

Proposed date 
to report back 
to Panel 

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group 

Purpose of Review – To 
establish the current situation 
with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet 
on the way forward. 
Terms of Reference – To 
examine the effectiveness of 
the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision. 
 

6 November 
2012  

21 November 
2012  

B Alcock 
M Howard 
R M Rudkin 
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman) 

Interim report 
to PMP 29 
January 2013  
 
26 March 2013 

To look at the decision to 
review the position with 
regard to leisure facilities in 
two years time and whether 
the business plan on which 
the decision was based 
was robust.  
 

To be confirmed 
Portfolio Holder to be consulted 
to advise how the Panel can 
assist with this topic. 
The Economic Development 
Manager to be consulted and to 
meet if necessary with the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman. 
 

30 May 2012 To be 
confirmed 

To be confirmed To be 
confirmed 

P
age 29



To review the development 
of sporting activities across 
the district (in light of the 
possibility of new leisure 
provision in the future). 
 

 31 May 2011    

Corporate Communications 
Strategy 

On 31 May 2012, the Panel 
had expressed its interest in 
undertaking a piece of work on 
Communications, in particular 
communication and 
consultation by the County 
Council with the District and 
Parish Councils and 
communication by the District 
Council with Members. The 
Joint Communications Team 
Leader attended a meeting on 
10 July 2012 and would attend 
again on 29 January 2013 
(moved to 28 May 2013) to 
update on proposals of how the 
Corporate Communications 
Strategy would be developed.  
The Panel wish to be involved 
at regular intervals. 

31 May 2012     

 

P
age 30


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	5.a) Response of the Cabinet to the Interim Report of the re-convened Effectiveness of CCTV in South Holland Task Group
	7. Key Decision Plan
	8. Carbon Management Plan Task Group update
	10. Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

